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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q
ý QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2010

OR

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from                             to                            
Commission file number: 1-8520

TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Maryland 52-1145429
(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer
Identification No.)

Terra Centre
P.O. Box 6000

600 Fourth Street
Sioux City, Iowa 51102-6000

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (712) 277-1340

        Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes ý    No o

        Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes o    No o
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        Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer," and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer ý Accelerated filer o Non-accelerated filer o

(Do not check if
smaller reporting company)

Smaller reporting company o

        Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes o    No ý

        At the close of business on May 7, 2010 the following shares of the registrant's stock were outstanding:

Common Shares, without par value 100 shares
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

 ITEM 1.    FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands)

(unaudited)

March 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

March 31,
2009

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 635,628 $ 501,310 $ 1,020,020
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $760, $1,403 and $613 114,874 100,216 119,280
Inventories, net 172,593 137,073 160,339
Other current assets 68,052 87,703 39,250

Total current assets 991,147 826,302 1,338,889

Property, plant and equipment, net 479,011 456,702 406,844
Equity method investments 204,972 258,860 253,624
Deferred plant turnaround costs, net 20,686 25,011 27,053
Other assets 31,842 32,868 24,598

Total assets $ 1,727,658 $ 1,599,743 $ 2,051,008

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 96,712 $ 87,898 $ 98,556
Customer prepayments 106,322 39,238 176,544
Derivative hedge liabilities 9,954 281 27,274
Accrued and other current liabilities 106,219 78,792 65,240

Total current liabilities 319,207 206,209 367,614

Long-term debt 602,605 602,434 330,000
Deferred taxes 71,873 76,819 74,618
Pension liabilities 27,349 27,521 9,322
Other liabilities 100,801 101,126 78,452

Total liabilities 1,121,835 1,014,109 860,006

Preferred Shares�liquidation value of $0; $500 and $1,600 � 483 1,544
Common Stockholders' Equity
Capital stock
Common Shares, authorized 133,500 shares; 100,166; 99,841 and 99,701 shares
outstanding 153,127 152,802 152,481

Paid-in capital 449,247 446,078 580,035
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (146,568) (120,362) (172,065)
Retained earnings 48,905 12,219 527,557

Total common stockholders' equity 504,711 490,737 1,088,008
Noncontrolling interest 101,112 94,414 101,450
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Total equity 605,823 585,151 1,189,458

Total liabilities and equity $ 1,727,658 $ 1,599,743 $ 2,051,008

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per-share amounts)

(unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2010 2009
Revenues
Product revenues $ 407,794 $ 418,362
Other income 1,073 1,391

Total revenues 408,867 419,753

Cost and Expenses
Cost of sales 304,105 342,957
Selling, general and
administrative expenses 23,159 18,568
Other operating expenses 3,332 1,700
Equity earnings of North
American affiliates (11,898) (3,252)

Total cost and expenses 318,698 359,973

Income from operations 90,169 59,780
Interest income 134 1,810
Interest expense (13,389) (6,728)

Income before income
taxes, noncontrolling
interest and equity
earnings of GrowHow UK
Limited 76,914 54,862
Income tax provision (25,151) (12,585)
Equity earnings (loss) of
GrowHow UK Limited 3,149 (4,374)

Net income 54,912 37,903
Less: Net income
attributable to the
noncontrolling interest 8,204 7,908

Net income attributable
to Terra Industries Inc. $ 46,708 $ 29,995

Amounts attributable to
Terra Industries Inc.
common stockholders:
Net income attributable
to Terra Industries Inc. $ 46,708 $ 29,995
Less: Preferred share
dividends 5 17
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Net income attributable
to Terra Industries Inc.
common stockholders $ 46,703 $ 29,978

Net income per common
share attributable to Terra
Industries Inc. common
stockholders:

Basic $ 0.47 $ 0.30
Diluted $ 0.47 $ 0.30

Weighted average
common shares
outstanding:

Basic 99,833 99,040
Diluted 100,249 99,760

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

(unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2010 2009
Operating Activities
Net income $ 54,912 $ 37,903
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows from operating activities:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortization of deferred plant turnaround costs 20,673 20,145
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 32 235
Deferred income taxes (3,149) (2,359)
Distributions in excess of equity earnings of North American affiliates 2,362 475
Distributions in excess of equity earnings of GrowHow UK Limited 15,763 4,374
Non-cash loss on derivatives 276 621
Share-based compensation 6,811 7,170
Amortization of intangible and other assets 2,084 2,340

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (14,154) 10,640
Inventories (34,387) 35,907
Accounts payable and customer prepayments 75,359 64,112
Derivative hedge liabilities 9,673 (98,651)
Other assets and liabilities, net 26,908 2,211

Net cash flows from operating activities 163,163 85,123

Investing Activities
Capital expenditures and plant turnaround expenditures (35,055) (28,632)
Distributions received from North American affiliates 1,115 4,473
Balancing consideration and other payments from GrowHow UK Limited 13,911 5,230

Net cash flows from investing activities (20,029) (18,929)

Financing Activities
Preferred share dividends paid (5) (17)
Common stock dividends paid (10,017) �
Common stock issuances and vestings (888) (5,270)
Excess tax benefits from equity compensation plans 2,190 3,921
Distributions to noncontrolling interests � (13,705)

Net cash flows from financing activities (8,720) (15,071)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (96) 2,197

Increase to cash and cash equivalents 134,318 53,320
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 501,310 966,700

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 635,628 $ 1,020,020

5
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TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(in thousands)

(unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2010 2009
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid $ 838 $ 11,829
Income tax refunds received 14,029 766
Income taxes paid 4,705 66,532

Supplemental schedule of non-cash
investing and financing activities:
Conversion of preferred shares to
common stock $ 483 $ �
Supplemental schedule of
unconsolidated affiliate distributions:
Distributions received from North
American affiliates $ 15,375 $ 8,200
Contribution settlement payments,
balancing consideration and and other
payments received from GrowHow UK
Limited 32,823 5,230

Total cash distributions received from
unconsolidated affiliates $ 48,198 $ 13,430

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2010 AND 2009

(in thousands)

(unaudited)

Common
Stock

Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

Noncontrolling
Interest

Retained
Earnings Total

Comprehensive
Income

Balance at January 1, 2010 $ 152,802 $ 446,078 $ (120,362) $ 94,414 $ 12,219 $ 585,151
Comprehensive income:
Net income � � � 8,204 46,708 54,912 $ 54,912
Foreign currency translation adjustment � � (16,612) � � (16,612) (16,612)
Change in fair value of derivatives, net
of taxes of $6,936 � � (9,594) (1,506) � (11,100) (11,100)

Comprehensive income � � � � � 27,200
Comprehensive income attributable to
noncontrolling interest � � � � � � (6,698)

Comprehensive income attributable to
Terra Industries Inc. $ 20,502

Preferred share dividends � � � � (5) (5)
Preferred share conversion 60 423 � � � 483
Common stock dividends � � � � (10,017) (10,017)
Excess tax benefit � 2,190 � � � 2,190
Net vested stock 265 (1,152) � � � (887)
Share-based compensation � 1,708 � � � 1,708

Balance March 31, 2010 $ 153,127 $ 449,247 $ (146,568) $ 101,112 $ 48,905 $ 605,823

Common
Stock

Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

Noncontrolling
Interest

Retained
Earnings Total

Comprehensive
Income

Balance at January 1, 2009 $ 152,111 $ 579,164 $ (175,529) $ 104,082 $ 507,299 $ 1,167,127
Comprehensive income:
Net income � � � 7,908 29,995 37,903 $ 37,903
Foreign currency translation
adjustment � � (17,859) � � (17,859) (17,859)
Change in fair value of derivatives, net
of taxes of $15,533 � � 21,323 3,165 � 24,488 24,488

Comprehensive income � � � � � 44,532
Comprehensive income attributable to
noncontrolling interest � � � � � � (11,073)

Comprehensive income attributable to
Terra Industries Inc. $ 33,459

Distributions to noncontrolling interest � � � (13,705) � (13,705)
Preferred share dividends � � � (17) (17)
Common stock dividends � � � (9,987) (9,987)
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Excess tax benefit � 3,921 � � 3,921
Nonvested stock 370 (5,640) � � (5,270)
Share-based compensation � 2,590 � � 2,590
Other � � � � 267 267

Balance March 31, 2009 $ 152,481 $ 580,035 $ (172,065) $ 101,450 $ 527,557 $ 1,189,458

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)

1. Background and Basis of Presentation

        Terra Industries Inc. together with its subsidiaries (Terra, we, our, or us) is a leading North American producer and marketer of nitrogen
products made from natural gas. We also operate production assets in Trinidad, and the United Kingdom, through joint venture agreements. Our
six North American and our international production locations, along with a robust distribution capability, provide us with the ability to
effectively serve key agricultural, industrial and environmental markets. Our principal products are anhydrous ammonia (ammonia), ammonium
nitrate solutions (UAN), ammonium nitrate (AN) and urea. Our principal customers are national agricultural retail chains, farm cooperatives,
independent dealers and industrial customers. We operate in one principal industry segment�Nitrogen Products, which is based upon the guidance
provided in the Segment Reporting topic of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standard Codification
(Codification). As a wholesale nitrogen producer, we do not report industry segments in a separate disclosure because our only reportable
industry segment is nitrogen.

        The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) for interim reporting. They do not include all of the information and footnotes required
by United States generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. Therefore, these financial statements should be read
in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2009, included in our 2009
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

        Terra's significant accounting policies are described in the notes to consolidated financial statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2009. Management is responsible for the unaudited consolidated financial statements included in this
document. The consolidated financial statements included in this document are unaudited; however, they contain all normal recurring
adjustments that, in the opinion of management, are necessary for a fair presentation of Terra's financial position, results of operations and cash
flows for the periods presented.

        Because of the seasonal nature of our operations and effects of weather-related conditions in several of our marketing areas, results of any
interim reporting period should not be considered as indicative of results for future quarters or the full year.

        On April 15, 2010, Terra became a wholly owned subsidiary of CF Industries Holdings, Inc. (CF) pursuant to an agreement and plan of
merger between CF and Terra. For additional information on the business combination activities and subsequent events, see Note 18, Business
Combination Activities and Subsequent Events.

2. New Accounting Standards

        Following are summaries of accounting pronouncements that were either recently adopted or may become applicable to our consolidated
financial statements. It should be noted that the accounting standards references provided below reflect the FASB Codification that was effective
for periods ending after September 15, 2009, and related Accounting Standards Updates (ASU).

8
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TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(unaudited)

2. New Accounting Standards (Continued)

Recently Adopted Pronouncements

        In June 2009, the FASB issued an accounting standard that revises the rules for consolidating variable interest entities (ASU No. 2009-17).
This standard changes how a reporting entity determines when to consolidate an entity that is insufficiently capitalized or is not controlled
through voting (or similar rights). The determination is based on, among other things, the other entity's purpose and design and the reporting
entity's ability to direct the activities of the other entity that most significantly impact the other entity's economic performance. The standard also
requires a company to provide additional disclosures about its involvement with variable interest entities and any significant changes in risk
exposure due to that involvement. We adopted this standard as of January 1, 2010. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact
on our consolidated financial statements.

        In June 2009, the FASB issued a standard that amends the requirements for transfers of financial assets (ASU No. 2009-16). This standard
removes the concept of a qualifying special-purpose entity and removes the exception from applying these rules to qualifying special purpose
entities. It also changes the requirements for derecognizing financial assets and requires additional disclosures about a transferor's continuing
involvement in financial assets. We adopted this standard as of January 1, 2010. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on
our consolidated financial statements.

        In January 2010, the FASB issued a standard pertaining to fair value disclosures (ASU No. 2010-6) that requires a reporting entity to
disclose separately the amounts of significant transfers in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements and describe the reasons for
the transfers, and to disclose separately certain additional information about purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements of Level 3 fair value
measurements. This standard also requires an entity to provide disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair value
for both recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements for Level 2 and Level 3 items. The standard is effective for interim and annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2009, except for the Level 3 disclosure of activity, which is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2010. We adopted the effective portions of this standard as of March 31, 2010. The adoption of the effective portions of this
standard did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Pronouncements

        In October 2009, the FASB issued a standard that addresses the accounting for multiple-deliverable arrangements to enable vendors to
account for revenue from products or services (deliverables) separately rather than as a combined unit (ASU No. 2009-13). It establishes a
hierarchy for determining the selling price for each deliverable. The selling price used for each deliverable should be based on vendor-specific
objective evidence if available, third-party evidence if vendor-specific objective evidence is not available, or estimated selling prices. This
standard also clarifies existing requirements that the allocation of revenue is based on entity-specific assumptions rather than assumptions of a
marketplace participant. This standard is effective for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or
after June 15, 2010. We have not yet determined the impact of this standard on our consolidated financial statements.

9
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TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(unaudited)

3. Income Per Share

        Basic income per share data is based on the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted income per
share data is based on the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding and the effect of all dilutive potential common shares
including stock options, nonvested shares, convertible preferred shares and common stock warrants. Nonvested stock carries dividend and voting
rights, but is not included in the weighted average number of common shares outstanding used to compute basic income per share since they are
contingently returnable.

        The following table provides a reconciliation between basic and diluted income per share attributable to Terra Industries Inc. for the three
month periods ended March 31, 2010 and 2009:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2010 2009
Basic income per common share attributable
to Terra Industries Inc.:
Income from continuing operations $ 46,708 $ 29,995
Less: Preferred share dividends (5) (17)

Income from continuing operations available to
common stockholders 46,703 29,978
Income from discontinued operations available
to common stockholders � �

Income available to common stockholders $ 46,703 $ 29,978

Weighted average shares outstanding 99,833 99,040

Income per share�continuing operations $ 0.47 $ 0.30
Income per share�discontinued operations � �

Net income per share $ 0.47 $ 0.30

Diluted income per common share
attributable to Terra Industries Inc.:
Income from continuing operations available to
common stockholders $ 46,703 $ 29,978

Add: Preferred share dividends 5 17

Income available to common stockholders and
assumed conversions $ 46,708 $ 29,995

Weighted average shares outstanding 99,833 99,040
Add incremental shares from assumed
conversions:
Preferred shares 33 161
Nonvested stock 383 559

Dilutive potential common shares 100,249 99,760
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Income per share�continuing operations $ 0.47 $ 0.30
Income per share�discontinued operations � �

Net income per share $ 0.47 $ 0.30
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TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(unaudited)

4. Inventories, net

        Inventories consisted of the following:

(in thousands)
March 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

March 31,
2009

Raw materials $ 21,215 $ 19,757 $ 16,544
Supplies 38,373 37,770 34,012
Finished goods 113,005 79,546 109,783

Total $ 172,593 $ 137,073 $ 160,339

        Production costs include the cost of direct labor and materials, depreciation and amortization and overhead costs related to manufacturing
activities. We allocate fixed production overhead costs based on the normal capacity of our production facilities and unallocated overhead costs
are recognized as expense in the period incurred. We determine the cost of inventories using the first-in, first-out method.

        Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Market is defined as current replacement cost, except that market should not exceed
the net realizable value and should not be less than net realizable value reduced by an allowance for an approximately normal profit margin. We
perform a monthly analysis of our inventory balances to determine if the carrying amount of inventories exceeds our net realizable value. Our
determination of estimated net realizable value is based on customer orders, market trends and historical pricing. If the carrying amount exceeds
the estimated net realizable value, the carrying amount is reduced to the estimated net realizable value.

        We estimate a reserve for obsolescence and excess of our materials and supplies inventory. Inventory is stated net of the reserve.

5. Derivative Financial Instruments

        We enter into derivative financial instruments, including swaps, basis swaps, purchased put and call options and sold call options, to
manage the effect of changes in natural gas costs and the price of our nitrogen products. We report the fair value of the derivatives on our
balance sheet. If the derivative is not designated as a hedging instrument, changes in fair value are recognized in earnings in the period of
change. If the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge, and to the extent such hedge is determined to be effective, changes in fair value are
reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (AOCI) in the period of change and subsequently recognized in our
statement of operations in the period the offsetting hedged transaction occurs. If an instrument or the hedged item is settled early, we evaluate
whether the hedged forecasted transaction is still probable of occurring when determining whether to reclassify any gains or losses immediately
in cost of sales or wait until the forecasted transaction occurs.

        Until our derivatives settle, we test derivatives for ineffectiveness. This includes assessing the correlation of New York Mercantile
Exchange (NYMEX) pricing, which is commonly used as an index in natural gas derivatives, to the natural gas pipelines' pricing at our
manufacturing facilities. This assessment requires management judgment to determine the statistically and industry appropriate analysis of prior
operating relationships between the NYMEX prices and the natural gas pipelines' prices at our facilities.

11
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TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(unaudited)

5. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

        To the extent possible, we base our market value calculations on third party data. Due to multiple types of settlement methods available, not
all settlement methods for future period trades are available from third party sources. In the event that a derivative is measured for fair value
based on a settlement method that is not readily available, we estimate the fair value based on forward pricing information for similar types of
settlement methods.

        We manage risk using derivative financial instruments for changes in natural gas supply prices and changes in nitrogen prices. Derivative
financial instruments have credit risk and market risk.

        To manage credit risk, we enter into derivative transactions only with counter-parties who are currently rated as BBB or better or equivalent
as recognized by a national rating agency. We will not enter into additional transactions with a given counter-party if the additional transaction
will result in total credit exposure to that counterparty exceeding $20 million. The credit rating of counter-parties may be modified through
guarantees, letters of credit or other credit enhancement vehicles. As of March 31, 2010, we did not have any credit risk related contingent
features that would require us to settle the derivative instruments or to post collateral upon the occurrence of a credit event.

        We classify a derivative financial instrument as a hedge if all of the following conditions are met:

1.
The item to be hedged must expose us to currency, interest or price risk;

2.
It must be probable that the results of the hedge position substantially offset the effects of currency, interest or price changes
on the hedged item (e.g., there is a high correlation between the hedge position and changes in market value of the hedge
item); and

3.
The derivative financial instrument must be designated as a hedge of the item at the inception of the hedge.

        Natural gas supplies to meet production requirements at our North American production facilities are purchased at market prices. Natural
gas market prices are volatile and we effectively fix prices for a portion of our natural gas production requirements and inventory through the
use of futures contracts, swaps and options. The North American contracts reference physical natural gas prices or appropriate NYMEX futures
contract prices. Contract physical prices for North America are frequently based on prices at the Henry Hub in Louisiana, the most common and
financially liquid location of reference for financial derivatives related to natural gas. However, natural gas supplies for Terra's North American
production facilities are purchased at locations other than Henry Hub, which often creates a location basis differential between the contract price
and the physical price of natural gas. Accordingly, the use of financial derivatives may not exactly offset the change in the price of physical gas.
Natural gas derivatives are designated as cash flow hedges, provided that the derivatives meet the conditions discussed above. The contracts are
traded in months forward and settlement dates are scheduled to coincide with gas purchases during that future period.

        A swap is a contract between us and a third party to exchange cash based on a designated price. Option contracts give the holder the right to
either own or sell a futures or swap contract. The futures contracts require maintenance of cash balances generally 10 percent to 20 percent of
the contract value and option contracts require initial premium payments ranging from 2 percent to 5 percent of contract value. Basis swap
contracts require payments to or from us for the amount, if any, that monthly published gas prices from the source specified in the contract differ
from prices of NYMEX natural gas futures during a specified period. There are no initial cash requirements related to the swap and basis swap
agreements.

12
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TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(unaudited)

5. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

        We may use a collar structure in which we will enter into a swap, sell a call at a higher price and buy a put. The collar structure allows for
greater participation in a decrease to natural gas prices and protects against moderate price increases. However, the collar exposes us to large
price increases.

        As of March 31, 2010 and 2009, we had open derivative contracts of 12.4 million MMBtus and 16.9 million MMBtus, respectively, of
natural gas.

        The following summarizes the gross fair market value of all derivative instruments and their location in our Consolidated Balance Sheets
are shown by those in an asset or liability position and are categorized as commodity derivatives.

Asset Derivatives(a)

(in thousands)

Derivative Instrument Location
March 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

March 31,
2009

Commodity Derivatives Other current assets $ 27 $ 9,076 $ 7,447

Liability Derivatives(a)

Derivative Instrument Location
March 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

March 31,
2009

Commodity Derivatives
Derivative hedge
liabilities $ (9,954) $ (281) $ (27,274)

(a)
Amounts are disclosed at gross fair value as required by the Derivative and Hedging topic of the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification. All of our commodity derivatives are designated as cash flow hedging instruments. See Notes 1 and 5 to our audited
consolidated financial statements included on our 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information on our overall risk
management strategies. The deferred taxes related to these commodity derivatives for the periods ended March 31, 2010,
December 31, 2009 and March 31, 2009 were $3.7 million, $(3.2) million and $9.6 million, respectively.

        Certain derivatives outstanding at March 31, 2010 and 2009, which settled during April 2010 and April 2009, respectively, are included in
the position of open natural gas derivatives in the table above. The April 2010 derivatives settled for an approximate $5.6 million loss compared
to the April 2009 derivatives which settled for an approximate $14.6 million loss. Substantially all material open derivatives at March 31, 2010
will settle during the next twelve months.

        We are required to maintain certain margin deposits on account with derivative counterparties. We had no margin deposits with derivative
counterparties at March 31, 2010, December 31, 2009 and March 31, 2009.

        At March 31, 2010 and 2009, we determined that a portion of certain derivative contracts were ineffective for accounting purposes and, as a
result, recorded a $0.3 million charge and $1.1 million charge to cost of sales, respectively. At March 31, 2009, we excluded a portion of the loss
on certain derivative contracts from the effectiveness assessment and, as a result, recorded a $4.3 million charge to cost of sales.

        The effective portion of gains and losses on derivative contracts that qualify for hedge treatment are carried as AOCI and credited or
charged to cost of sales in the month in which the hedged
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5. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

transaction settles. Gains and losses on the contracts that do not qualify for hedge treatment are credited or charged to cost of sales based on the
positions' fair value. The risk and reward of outstanding natural gas positions are directly related to increases or decreases in natural gas prices in
relation to the underlying NYMEX natural gas contract prices. All of our commodity derivatives are designated as cash flow hedging
instruments. See Notes 1 and 5 to our audited consolidated financial statements included in our 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional
information on our overall risk management strategies.

        The following table presents the effect of our commodity derivative instruments on the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the three
months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009.

Three Months Ended
(in thousands)

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in AOCI

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Reclassified from AOCI

into Income
Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Income(b)Location of Gain

(Loss) Reclassified
from AOCI into

Income(a)
March 31,
2010

March 31,
2009

March 31,
2010

March 31,
2009

Location of Gain
(Loss) Recognized

in Income(b)
March 31,
2010

March 31,
2009

$ (5,955) $ (32,870) Cost of Sales $ 2,805 $ (72,891) Cost of Sales $ (257) $ (5,351)

(a)
Effective portion of gain (loss)

(b)
The amount of gain or (loss) recognized in income represents $(0.3) million and $(1.1) million related to the ineffective portion of the
hedging relationships in the three months ended March 31, 2010 and March 31, 2009, respectively, and $0 million and $(4.3) million
related to the amount excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness, respectively.

        Approximately $6.0 million of the net accumulated loss at March 31, 2010 will be reclassified into earnings during the next twelve months
as compared to $25.3 million of the net accumulated loss at March 31, 2009.

6. Fair Value Measurements

        The Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures topic of the FASB Codification establishes a three level hierarchal disclosure framework
that prioritizes and ranks the level of market price observability used in measuring assets and liabilities at fair value. Market price observability
is impacted by a number of factors, including the type of asset or liability and its characteristics. Assets and liabilities with readily available
active quoted prices or for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally will have a higher degree of market price
observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair value.

        The three levels are defined as follows:

�
Level 1�inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

�
Level 2�inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and
inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial
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6. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

�
Level 3�inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

        We evaluated our assets and liabilities to determine which items should be disclosed according to the Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures topic of the FASB Codification. We currently measure our money market funds and derivative contracts on a recurring basis at fair
value. The fair value of our money market fund investments was determined based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. The
inputs included in the fair value measurement of our derivative contracts use adjusted quoted prices from an active market, which are classified
as Level 2 as a significant other observable input in the disclosure hierarchy framework as defined by the Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures topic of the FASB Codification. Our gas derivative contracts, which are classified as a Level 2 input, are comprised of swaps, basis
swaps and options. The valuation techniques for these contracts are observable market data for inputs, including prices quoted on the NYMEX,
prices quoted in spot markets and commonly referenced industry publications and prices quoted by market makers. There have been no changes
in valuation techniques and no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 categories during the quarter ended March 31, 2010.

        The following table summarizes the valuation of Terra's assets and liabilities in accordance with the Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures topic of the Codification fair value hierarchy levels as of March 31, 2010:

(in thousands)

Quoted Market
Prices in Active

Markets
(Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Assets
Money market funds $ 365,898 $ � $ �
Derivative contracts � 27 �

Total $ 365,898 $ 27 $ �

Liabilities
Derivative contracts $ � $ (9,954) $ �

Total $ � $ (9,954) $ �
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6. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

        The following table summarizes the valuation of Terra's assets and liabilities in accordance with the Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures topic of the Codification fair value hierarchy levels as of December 31, 2009:

(in thousands)

Quoted Market
Prices in Active

Markets
(Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Assets
Money market funds $ 280,470 $ � $ �
Derivative contracts � 9,076 �

Total $ 280,470 $ 9,076 $ �

Liabilities
Derivative contracts $ � $ (281) $ �

Total $ � $ (281) $ �

        The following table summarizes the valuation of Terra's assets and liabilities in accordance with the Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures topic of the Codification fair value hierarchy levels as of March 31, 2009:

(in thousands)

Quoted Market
Prices in Active

Markets
(Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Assets
Money market funds $ 831,618 $ $ �
Derivative contracts � 7,447 �

Total $ 831,618 $ 7,447 $ �

Liabilities
Derivative contracts $ � $ (27,274) $ �

Total $ � $ (27,274) $ �

        The following table represents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of Terra's financial instruments as of March 31, 2010 and
2009:

March 31, 2010 March 31, 2009

(in millions)
Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 635.6 $ 635.6 $ 1,020.0 $ 1020.0

Financial Liabilities
Long-term debt 602.6 740.5 330.0 304.4

Preferred shares � � 1.5 4.5
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6. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

        The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument:

�
Cash and receivables:  The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

�
Long-term debt:  The fair value of our long-term debt is estimated by discounting expected cash flows at the rates currently
offered for debt of the same remaining maturities.

�
Preferred shares:  Preferred shares are valued on the basis of market quotes, when available, and management estimates
based on comparisons with similar instruments that are publicly traded.

        Concentration of Credit Risk:    We are subject to credit risk through trade receivables and short-term investments. Although a substantial
portion of our debtors' ability to pay depends upon the agribusiness economic sector, credit risk with respect to trade receivables generally is
minimized due to its geographic dispersion. Short-term cash investments are placed in short duration corporate and government debt securities
funds with well-capitalized, high quality financial institutions.

        Financial Instruments:    At March 31, 2010, we had letters of credit outstanding totaling $8.2 million, which guarantees various
insurance and financing activities.

7. Preferred Shares

        The components of preferred shares outstanding at March 31, 2010 and 2009:

2010 2009

(in thousands)
Number
of shares

Carrying
Value

Number
of shares

Carrying
Value

Series A Preferred Shares (120,000 shares authorized, $1,000 per share liquidation value) � � 1,600 $ 1,544
        We did not have shares of cumulative convertible perpetual Series A Preferred Shares at March 31, 2010, and 1,600 shares with a
liquidation value of $1,000 per share at March 31, 2009. Cumulative dividends of $10.625 per Series A Preferred Share are payable quarterly.
The Series A Preferred Shares are not redeemable, but are convertible into our common stock at the option of the holder for a conversion price
of $9.96 per common share. The Series A Preferred Shares may automatically be converted to common shares after December 20, 2009 if the
closing price for our common shares exceeds 140% of the conversion price for twenty days within a consecutive thirty day period prior to such
conversion.

        In the third quarter of 2009, a total of 1,100 shares of the outstanding Series A Preferred Shares were surrendered and converted into
110,442 shares of Terra Industries Inc. common stock and no cash premium was paid.

        In the first quarter of 2010, we exercised our right to automatically convert the remaining outstanding Series A Preferred Shares and a total
of 500 shares of the outstanding Series A Preferred Shares were converted into 60,241 shares of Terra Industries Inc. common stock.
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8. Turnaround Costs

        The following represents a summary of the deferred plant turnaround costs for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009:

(in thousands)
Beginning
Balance

Turnaround
Costs

Capitalized
Turnaround
Amortization

Currency
Translation
Adjustments

Ending
Balance

Period ended:
March 31, 2010 $ 25,011 $ 254 $ (4,607) $ 28 $ 20,686
March 31, 2009 23,467 9,328 (5,620) (122) 27,053

9. Accrued and Other Current Liabilities

        Accrued and other current liabilities consisted of the following:

(in thousands)
March 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

March 31,
2009

Income taxes payable $ 30,459 $ 9,441 $ 8,224
Accrued interest 20,305 8,898 3,974
Payroll and benefit costs 14,268 18,913 14,165
Accrued dividends payable 12,098 1,972 10,483
Accrued CF defense costs 4,245 14,730 1,403
Current accrued phantom shares 2,818 3,449 5,341
Accrued property taxes 2,152 3,554 1,937
Unrecognized tax benefit 1,551 1,506 �
Deferred revenue 1,535 1,530 3,585
Other 16,788 14,799 16,128

$ 106,219 $ 78,792 $ 65,240

10. Other Liabilities

        Other liabilities consisted of the following:

(in thousands)
March 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

March 31,
2009

Unrecognized tax benefit $ 61,028 $ 60,904 $ 35,949
Long-term medical and closed facility reserve 21,319 21,483 23,885
Long-term deferred revenue 8,827 9,178 10,114
Accrued phantom shares 2,365 2,355 2,678
Other 7,262 7,206 5,826

$ 100,801 $ 101,126 $ 78,452
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11. Equity Investments

North America

        Our investments in North American companies that are accounted for under the equity method of accounting and included in operations
consist of the following: (1) 50% ownership interest in Point Lisas Nitrogen Limited (PLNL), which operates an ammonia production plant in
Trinidad, (2) 50% interest in an ammonia storage joint venture located in Houston, Texas and (3) 50% interest in a joint venture in Oklahoma
CO2 at our Verdigris nitrogen plant. These investments were $110.1 million and $126.6 million at March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. We
include the net earnings of these investments as an element of income from operations because the investees' operations provide additional
capacity to our operations.

        The combined results of operations and financial position of our North American equity method investments are summarized below:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(in thousands) 2010 2009
Condensed income statement information:
Net sales $ 70,984 $ 37,979

Net income $ 24,398 $ 8,007

Terra's equity in earnings of North American affiliates $ 11,898 $ 3,252

(in thousands)
March 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

March 31,
2009

Condensed balance sheet information:
Current assets $ 60,633 $ 52,701 $ 47,448
Long-term assets 154,164 156,825 169,549

Total assets $ 214,797 $ 209,526 $ 216,997

Current liabilities $ 34,512 $ 23,041 $ 17,464
Long-term liabilities 19,305 19,083 20,226
Equity 160,980 167,402 179,307

Total liabilities and equity $ 214,797 $ 209,526 $ 216,997

        The carrying value of these investments at March 31, 2010 was $29.6 million more than our share of the affiliates' book value. The excess
is attributable primarily to the step-up in basis for fixed asset values, which is being depreciated over a period of approximately fifteen years.
Our equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries is different than our ownership interest in income reported by the unconsolidated
subsidiaries due to deferred profits on intergroup transactions and amortization of basis differences.

        We have transactions in the normal course of business with PLNL whereby we are obliged to purchase 50% of the ammonia produced by
PLNL at current market prices. During the three month
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11. Equity Investments (Continued)

periods ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, we purchased approximately $26.8 million and $16.5 million, respectively, of ammonia from PLNL.

        We received $15.4 million and $8.2 million in distributions from our North American equity investments in the three month periods ended
March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

United Kingdom

        On September 14, 2007, we completed the formation of GrowHow UK Limited (GrowHow), a joint venture between Terra and Kemira
GrowHow Oyj (Kemira). Pursuant to the joint venture agreement, we contributed our United Kingdom subsidiary Terra Nitrogen (UK) Limited
to the joint venture for a 50% interest. Subsequent to the formation, we have accounted for our investment in GrowHow as a non-operating
equity method investment. We do not include the net earnings of this investment as an element of income from operations since the investees'
operations do not provide additional capacity to us, nor are its operations integrated with our supply chain in North America. The GrowHow
joint venture includes the Kemira site at Ince and our former Teeside and Severnside sites.

        In conjunction with the formation of GrowHow, we commenced the closure of our Severnside, U.K. facility. Pursuant to the agreement
with Kemira, we are responsible for the remediation costs required to prepare the Severnside site for disposal. During 2009, Severnside
underwent remediation and we incurred $8.7 million in relation to the remediation costs. We estimate a remaining $2-3 million in remediation
cost to be incurred in 2010. Upon the disposition of Severnside, Terra is entitled to receive the net sales proceeds. We anticipate the proceeds
related to the sale of the Severnside land will exceed the total cost of reclamation of the site.

        The Joint Venture Contribution Agreement specifies that we are entitled to receive balancing consideration payments up to £60 million
based on GrowHow's operating results for fiscal 2008 to 2010. Pursuant to agreements with Kemira, we received minimum balancing
consideration and other payments totaling £21.6 million ($32.8 million) and £3.7 million ($5.2 million) during the quarters ended March 31,
2010 and 2009, respectively. The carrying value of this equity method investment was $94.9 million and $127.0 million at March 31, 2010 and
2009, respectively.

        The financial position of our equity method investment in GrowHow at March 31, 2010 and 2009 and the results of operations for the
quarters ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 are summarized below.

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(in thousands) 2010 2009
Condensed income statement information:
Net sales $ 124,848 $ 107,660

Net income (loss) $ 7,942 $ (7,855)

Terra's equity in earnings (loss) of GrowHow $ 3,149 $ (4,374)
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11. Equity Investments

(in thousands)
March 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

March 31,
2009

Condensed balance sheet information:
Current assets $ 140,446 $ 206,225 $ 170,569
Long-term assets 253,466 288,101 205,353

Total assets $ 393,912 $ 494,326 $ 375,922

Current liabilities $ 135,832 $ 82,877 $ 66,937
Long-term liabilities 111,461 186,257 93,313
Equity 146,619 225,192 215,672

Total liabilities and equity $ 393,912 $ 494,326 $ 375,922

        The carrying value of this investment at March 31, 2010 was $21.6 million more than our share of GrowHow's book value. The excess is
attributable primarily to the step-up in basis for fixed asset values, which is being depreciated over a period of approximately twelve years. Our
equity earnings of GrowHow are different than our ownership interest in GrowHow's net income due to the amortization of basis differences.

12. Long-term Debt

        Long-term debt consisted of the following:

(in thousands)
March 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

March 31,
2009

Unsecured Senior Notes, 7.0% due 2017 $ 12,525 $ 12,525 $ 330,000
Unsecured Senior Notes, 7.75% due 2019 600,000 600,000 �

612,525 612,525 330,000
Less net unamortized debt discount (9,920) (10,091)
Less current maturities � � �

Total long-term debt $ 602,605 $ 602,434 $ 330,000

        In October 2009, we issued $600 million of 7.75 percent Unsecured Senior Notes due in 2019 (2019 Notes) in order to fund the special cash
dividend and refinance our Senior Unsecured Notes due in 2017 (2017 Notes). The notes are unconditionally guaranteed by Terra and certain of
its U.S. subsidiaries, see Note 16, Guarantor Subsidiaries, of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. These notes and guarantees
are unsecured and will rank equal in right of payment with any existing and future senior obligations of such guarantors.

        On April 5, 2010, the 2019 Notes were called for redemption in accordance with their terms, and the indenture governing the notes was
satisfied and discharged.

        On September 24, 2009, we commenced a cash tender offer and consent solicitation for any and all of the 2017 Notes. On October 27,
2009, we announced completion of the tender offer and received tenders from holders of approximately $317.5 aggregate principal amount of
the 2017 Notes, representing approximately 96.2 percent of the outstanding notes. As of March 31, 2010, the
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12. Long-term Debt (Continued)

outstanding debt balance related to the 2017 Notes is $12.5 million. We recorded a $53.5 million pre-tax loss ($32.4 million, net of tax) on the
early retirement of debt which consisted of $48.8 million for the early call premium, $4.5 million of unamortized issuance costs, and
$0.2 million in related expenses for the tender of the 2017 Notes. Following the tender and consent solicitation, substantially all of the restrictive
covenants in the indenture governing the 2017 Notes were eliminated.

        We have revolving credit facilities totaling $200 million that expire January 31, 2012. The revolving facilities are secured by substantially
all of our working capital. Borrowing availability is generally based on 100 percent of eligible cash balances, 85 percent of eligible accounts
receivable, approximately 60 percent of eligible finished goods inventory and is reduced by outstanding letters of credit. These facilities include
$50 million only available for the use of Terra Nitrogen Company, L.P. (TNCLP), one of our consolidated subsidiaries. Borrowings under the
revolving facilities will bear interest at a floating rate plus an applicable margin, which can be either a base rate, or, at our option, a London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). At March 31, 2010, the LIBOR rate was 0.23 percent. The base rate is the highest of (1) Citibank, N.A.'s base
rate (2) the federal funds effective rate, plus one-half percent (0.50 percent) per annum and (3) the base three month certificate of deposit rate,
plus one-half percent (0.50 percent) per annum, plus an applicable margin in each case. LIBOR loans will bear interest at LIBOR plus an
applicable margin. The applicable margins for base rate loans and LIBOR loans are 2.00 percent and 3.00 percent, respectively, at March 31,
2010. The facilities require an initial three-quarter percent (0.75 percent) commitment fee on the difference between committed amounts and
amounts actually borrowed.

        At March 31, 2010, we had no outstanding revolving credit borrowings and $8.2 million in outstanding letters of credit. The $8.2 million in
outstanding letters of credit reduced our borrowing availability to $191.8 million at March 31, 2010.

        In conjunction with the merger transaction with CF (see Note 18), our $150 million facility at Terra Capital, Inc. was terminated effective
April 5, 2010.

        On April 2, 2010, TNCLP entered into a waiver relating to the $50 million facility at TNCLP. The waiver provides for the waiver of the
"change of control" event of default that would have resulted from CF's acquisition of more than 35% of Terra Industries Inc.'s outstanding
common stock. The waiver is effective through July 1, 2010. We are currently considering options to replace this facility. There can be no
assurance, however, that this facility can be replaced on terms acceptable to us or at all.

13. Pension Plans

        We maintain defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans that cover substantially all salaried and hourly employees. Benefits are
based on a pay formula. The defined benefit plans' assets consist principally of equity securities and corporate and government debt securities.
We also have certain non-qualified pension plans covering executives, which are unfunded. We accrue pension costs based upon annual
actuarial valuations for each plan and fund these costs in accordance with statutory requirements.
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13. Pension Plans (Continued)

        The estimated components of net periodic pension expense follow:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(in thousands) 2010 2009
Service cost $ 689 $ 733
Interest cost 4,835 4,648
Expected return on plan assets (4,781) (4,701)
Amortization of prior service cost (10) (9)
Amortization of actuarial loss 241 162

Pension expense $ 974 $ 833

        Cash contributions to the defined benefit pension plans for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 were $0.4 million and
$0.4 million, respectively.

        We also sponsor defined contribution savings plans covering most full-time employees. Contributions made by participating employees are
matched based on a specified percentage of employee contributions. The cost of our contributions to these plans for the three month periods
ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 were $1.3 million and $1.2 million, respectively.

        We provide health care benefits for certain U.S. employees who retired on or before January 1, 2002. Participant contributions and
co-payments are subject to escalation. The plan pays a stated percentage of most medical expenses reduced for any deductible and payments
made by government programs. These costs are funded as paid.

14. Comprehensive Income

        Comprehensive income attributable to Terra Industries Inc. and its components, net of tax, were as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(in thousands) 2010 2009
Net income $ 54,912 $ 37,903
Changes in cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment (16,612) (17,859)
Changes in market value of derivative financial instruments classified as cash flow hedges, net of tax (11,100) 24,488

Comprehensive income 27,200 44,532
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest (6,698) (11,073)

Comprehensive income attributable to Terra Industries Inc. $ 20,502 $ 33,459
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14. Comprehensive Income (Continued)

        The following table reconciles equity attributable to the noncontrolling interest:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(in thousands) 2010 2009
Noncontrolling interest, beginning of period $ 94,414 $ 104,082
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 8,204 7,908
Distributions to noncontrolling interests � (13,705)
Changes in market value of derivative financial instruments classified as cash flow hedges, net of tax,
attributable to the noncontrolling interest (1,506) 3,165

Noncontrolling interest, end of period $ 101,112 $ 101,450

15. Common Stockholders' Equity

        Terra allocates $1.00 per share upon the issuance of common shares to the common share capital account. The common shares have no par
value. On March 29, 2010, we declared a dividend of $0.10 per common share, payable April 22, 2010 to shareholders of record as of April 1,
2010.

        On May 6, 2008, the Board of Directors adopted a resolution for the repurchase of 12,841,717 shares, representing 14 percent of our then
outstanding common stock. There were no share repurchases during the first quarter of 2010.

16. Guarantor Subsidiaries

        Terra Industries Inc., excluding all majority owned subsidiaries (Parent), files a consolidated United States federal income tax return.
Beginning in 1995, the Parent adopted the tax sharing agreements, under which all domestic operating subsidiaries provide for and remit income
taxes to the Parent based on their pretax accounting income, adjusted for permanent differences between pretax accounting income and taxable
income. The tax sharing agreements allocated the benefits of operating losses and temporary differences between financial reporting and tax
basis income to the Parent.

        Condensed consolidating financial information regarding the Parent, Terra Capital, Inc. (TCAPI), the Guarantor Subsidiaries (as defined
below) and the subsidiaries of the Parent that are not guarantors of the 2017 Notes (the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries) (see Note 12 herein) for
March 31, 2010; December 31, 2009; and March 31, 2009 are presented below for purposes of complying with the reporting requirements of the
Guarantor Subsidiaries. The guarantees of the Guarantor Subsidiaries are full and unconditional. TCAPI and the Guarantor Subsidiaries
guarantees are joint and several with the Parent.

        Guarantor Subsidiaries include: subsidiaries that own the Woodward, Oklahoma; Port Neal, Iowa; Yazoo City, Mississippi; and Beaumont,
Texas plants; Terra Environmental Technologies; Terra Global Holding Company Inc., Terra Investment Fund LLC, Terra Investment Fund
II LLC, Terra (U.K.) Holdings Inc., and the corporate headquarters facility in Sioux City, Iowa. All Guarantor Subsidiaries are wholly owned by
the Parent. All other company facilities are owned by Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries.
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16. Guarantor Subsidiaries (Continued)

        Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2010:

(in thousands) Parent TCAPI
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ � $ 133,237 $ 146,916 $ 355,475 $ � $ 635,628
Accounts receivable, net � � 72,093 42,781 � 114,874
Inventories, net � � 107,440 65,153 � 172,593
Other current assets 34,627 � 13,399 20,026 � 68,052

Total current assets 34,627 133,237 339,848 483,435 � 991,147

Property, plant and equipment,
net � 11,884 334,658 132,469 � 479,011
Equity method investments � � 9,185 195,787 � 204,972
Other current assets � 15,040 17,401 20,087 � 52,528
Investments in and advances to
(from) affiliates 692,976 848,673 3,032,958 509,624 (5,084,231) �

Total Assets $ 727,603 $ 1,008,834 $ 3,734,050 $ 1,341,402 $ (5,084,231) $ 1,727,658

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 364 $ 43 $ 63,902 $ 32,403 $ � $ 96,712
Customer prepayments � � 42,722 63,600 � 106,322
Derivative hedge liabilities 5,670 8 64 4,212 � 9,954
Accrued and other current
liabilities 40,607 19,514 30,044 16,054 � 106,219

Total current liabilities 46,641 19,565 136,732 116,269 � 319,207

Long-term debt � 602,605 � � � 602,605
Deferred taxes 63,526 � � 8,347 � 71,873
Pension and other liabilities 112,725 (172) 9,841 5,756 � 128,150

Total liabilities 222,892 621,998 146,573 130,372 � 1,121,835

Common Stockholders'
Equity
Common stock 153,127 � 73 92,262 (92,335) 153,127
Paid-in capital 449,247 150,218 1,881,460 699,191 (2,730,869) 449,247
Accumulated other
comprehensive loss (146,568) � � (112,357) 112,357 (146,568)
Retained earnings 48,905 216,877 1,624,573 531,934 (2,373,384) 48,905

Total common stockholders'
equity 504,711 367,095 3,506,106 1,211,030 (5,084,231) 504,711
Noncontrolling interest � 19,741 81,371 � � 101,112
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Total equity 504,711 386,836 3,587,477 1,211,030 (5,084,231) 605,823

Total liabilities and equity $ 727,603 $ 1,008,834 $ 3,734,050 $ 1,341,402 $ (5,084,231) $ 1,727,658

25

Edgar Filing: TERRA INDUSTRIES INC - Form 10-Q

33



Table of Contents

TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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16. Guarantor Subsidiaries (Continued)

        Consolidating Statement of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2010:

(in thousands) Parent TCAPI
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues
Product revenues $ � $ � $ 253,441 $ 154,353 $ � $ 407,794
Other income � � 704 369 � 1,073

Total revenues � � 254,145 154,722 � 408,867

Cost and Expense
Cost of sales � 91 196,391 107,623 � 304,105
Selling, general and
administrative
expenses 965 (2,045) 14,594 9,645 � 23,159
Other operating
expenses 3,332 � � � � 3,332
Equity earnings of
North American
affiliates � � (1,097) (10,801) � (11,898)

Total cost and
expenses 4,297 (1,954) 209,888 106,467 � 318,698

Income (loss) from
operations (4,297) 1,954 44,257 48,255 � 90,169
Interest income � 40 34 60 � 134
Interest expense (465) (12,840) 28,040 (28,124) � (13,389)

Income (loss) before
income taxes,
noncontrolling interest
and equity earnings (4,762) (10,846) 72,331 20,191 � 76,914
Income tax benefit
(provision) 1,522 (4,753) (23,119) 1,199 � (25,151)
Equity earnings of
unconsolidated
affiliates 49,948 67,130 � 3,149 (117,078) 3,149

Net income 46,708 51,531 49,212 24,539 (117,078) 54,912
Less: Net income
attributable to the
noncontrolling interest � 1,583 6,621 � � 8,204

Net Income
attributable to Terra
Industries Inc. $ 46,708 $ 49,948 $ 42,591 $ 24,539 $ (117,078) $ 46,708
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16. Guarantor Subsidiaries (Continued)

        Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2010:

(in thousands) Parent TCAPI
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Operating Activities
Net income $ 46,708 $ 51,531 $ 49,212 $ 24,539 $ (117,078) $ 54,912
Adjustments to reconcile
net income to net cash
flows from operating
activities:
Depreciation and
amortization � � 14,546 6,127 � 20,673
Loss on sale of
property, plant and
equipment � � 32 � � 32
Deferred income taxes (3,149) � � � � (3,149)
Distributions in excess
of (less than) equity
earnings (49,948) (67,130) 278 2,084 117,078 2,362
Equity earnings of
GrowHow UK Limited � � � 15,763 � 15,763
Non-cash loss on
derivatives 276 � � � � 276
Share-based
compensation 6,811 � � � � 6,811
Amortization of
intangible and other
assets � 171 1,476 437 � 2,084
Change in operating
assets and
liabilities�continuing
operations 7,197 11,807 (7,674) 52,069 � 63,399

Net Cash Flows from
Operating Activities 7,895 (3,621) 57,870 101,019 � 163,163

Investing Activities
Capital expenditures
and plant turnaround
expenditures � (5,847) (21,891) (7,317) � (35,055)
Distributions received
from North American
affiliates � � � 1,115 � 1,115
Balancing
consideration and other
payments received
from GrowHow UK
Limited � � � 13,911 � 13,911
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Net Cash Flows from
Investing Activities � (5,847) (21,891) 7,709 � (20,029)

Financing Activities
Preferred share
dividends paid (5) � � � � (5)
Common stock
dividends paid (10,017) � � � � (10,017)
Common stock
issuances and vestings (888) � � � � (888)
Change in investments
and
advances from (to)
affiliates 825 68,164 (69,203) 214 � �
Excess tax benefits
from equity
compensation plans 2,190 � � � � 2,190

Net Cash Flows from
Financing Activities (7,895) 68,164 (69,203) 214 � (8,720)

Effect of Foreign
Exchange Rate on
Cash � � � (96) � (96)

Increase (decrease) in
Cash and Cash
Equivalents � 58,696 (33,224) 108,846 � 134,318

Cash and Cash
Equivalents at
Beginning of Year � 74,541 180,140 246,629 � 501,310

Cash and Cash
Equivalents at End of
Year $ � $ 133,237 $ 146,916 $ 355,475 $ � $ 635,628
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16. Guarantor Subsidiaries (Continued)

        Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2009:

(in thousands) Parent TCAPI
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ � $ 74,541 $ 180,140 $ 246,629 $ � $ 501,310
Accounts receivable, net � � 59,120 41,096 � 100,216
Inventories, net � � 86,291 50,782 � 137,073
Other current assets 52,850 532 14,756 19,565 � 87,703

Total current assets 52,850 75,073 340,307 358,072 � 826,302

Property, plant and equipment,
net � 6,037 322,062 128,603 � 456,702
Equity method investments � � 9,462 249,398 � 258,860
Other current assets � 15,588 21,434 20,857 � 57,879
Investments in and advances to
(from) affiliates 643,853 849,707 2,975,069 533,631 (5,002,260) �

Total Assets $ 696,703 $ 946,405 $ 3,668,334 $ 1,290,561 $ (5,002,260) $ 1,599,743

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 277 $ � $ 60,042 $ 27,579 $ � $ 87,898
Customer prepayments � � 14,857 24,381 � 39,238
Derivative hedge liabilities 130 � 85 66 � 281
Accrued and other current
liabilities 21,860 8,375 32,370 16,187 � 78,792

Total current liabilities 22,267 8,375 107,354 68,213 � 206,209

Long-term debt � 602,434 � � � 602,434
Deferred taxes 70,564 � � 6,255 � 76,819
Pension and other liabilities 112,652 � 10,187 5,808 � 128,647

Total liabilities 205,483 610,809 117,541 80,276 � 1,014,109

Preferred Shares 483 � � � � 483
Common Stockholders' Equity
Common stock 152,802 � 73 92,262 (92,335) 152,802
Paid-in capital 446,078 150,218 1,892,773 699,191 (2,742,182) 446,078
Accumulated other
comprehensive loss (120,362) � � (88,563) 88,563 (120,362)
Retained earnings 12,219 166,929 1,581,982 507,395 (2,256,306) 12,219

Total common stockholders'
equity 490,737 317,147 3,474,828 1,210,285 (5,002,260) 490,737

Noncontrolling interest � 18,449 75,965 � � 94,414
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Total equity 490,737 335,596 3,550,793 1,210,285 (5,002,260) 585,151

Total liabilities and equity $ 696,703 $ 946,405 $ 3,668,334 $ 1,290,561 $ (5,002,260) $ 1,599,743
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16. Guarantor Subsidiaries (Continued)

        Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2009:

(in thousands) Parent TCAPI
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ � $ 438,429 $ 260,637 $ 320,954 $ � $ 1,020,020
Accounts receivable, net � � 67,601 51,679 � 119,280
Inventories � � 93,160 67,179 � 160,339
Other current assets 22,821 7,015 2,675 6,739 � 39,250

Total current assets 22,821 445,444 424,073 446,551 � 1,338,889

Property, plant and equipment, net � 6,037 293,020 107,787 � 406,844
Equity method investments � � 9,816 243,808 � 253,624
Intangible assets, other assets and
deferred plant turnaround costs 2,220 6,862 29,607 12,962 � 51,651
Investments in and advances to (from)
affiliates 1,250,867 46,696 3,039,509 483,343 (4,820,415) �

Total assets $ 1,275,908 $ 505,039 $ 3,796,025 $ 1,294,451 $ (4,820,415) $ 2,051,008

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 60 $ � $ 75,484 $ 23,012 $ � $ 98,556
Customer prepayments � � 83,005 93,539 � 176,544
Derivative hedge liabilities 14,998 � 767 11,509 � 27,274
Accrued and other current liabilities 29,344 3,345 30,652 1,899 � 65,240

Total current liabilities 44,402 3,345 189,908 129,959 � 367,614

Long-term debt � 330,000 � � � 330,000
Deferred taxes 66,794 � � 7,824 � 74,618
Pension and other liabilities 75,160 (174) 10,685 2,103 � 87,774

Total liabilities 186,356 333,171 200,593 139,886 � 860,006

Preferred Shares�liquidation value of
$1,600 1,544 � � � � 1,544
Common Stockholders' Equity
Common stock 152,481 � 73 92,262 (92,335) 152,481
Paid-in capital 580,035 150,218 2,096,972 869,985 (3,117,175) 580,035
Accumulated other comprehensive
loss (172,065) � � (145,155) 145,155 (172,065)
Retained earnings 527,557 2,070 1,416,517 337,473 (1,756,060) 527,557

Total stockholders' equity 1,088,008 152,288 3,513,562 1,154,565 (4,820,415) 1,088,008
Noncontrolling interest � 19,580 81,870 � � 101,450
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Total equity 1,088,088 171,868 3,595,432 1,154,565 (4,820,415) 1,189,458

Total liabilities and equity $ 1,275,908 $ 505,039 $ 3,796,025 $ 1,294,451 $ (4,820,415) $ 2,051,008
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16. Guarantor Subsidiaries (Continued)

        Consolidating Statement of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2009:

(in thousands) Parent TCAPI
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues
Product revenues $ � $ � $ 209,867 $ 208,495 $ � $ 418,362
Other income � � 1,103 288 � 1,391

Total revenues � � 210,970 208,783 � 419,753

Cost and Expenses
Cost of sales � 83 182,145 160,729 � 342,957
Selling, general and administrative expenses 539 (2,159) 11,166 9,022 � 18,568
Other operating expenses 1,700 � � � � 1,700
Equity earnings of North American affiliates � � (699) (2,553) � (3,252)

Total cost and expenses 2,239 (2,076) 192,612 167,198 � 359,973

Income (loss) from operations (2,239) 2,076 18,358 41,585 � 59,780
Interest income � 806 499 505 � 1,810
Interest expense (465) (6,182) 23,459 (23,540) � (6,728)

Income (loss) before income taxes, noncontrolling
interest and equity earnings (2,704) (3,300) 42,316 18,550 � 54,862
Income tax benefit (provision) 535 (6,358) (8,372) 1,610 � (12,585)
Equity earnings (loss) of unconsolidated affiliates 32,164 43,348 � (4,374) (75,512) (4,374)

Net income 29,995 33,690 33,944 15,786 (75,512) 37,903
Less: Net income attributable to the noncontrolling
interest � (1,526) (6,382) � � (7,908)

Net income attributable to Terra Industries Inc. $ 29,995 $ 32,164 $ 27,562 $ 15,786 $ (75,512) $ 29,995
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16. Guarantor Subsidiaries (Continued)

        Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2009:

(in thousands) Parent TCAPI
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Operating Activities
Net income $ 29,995 $ 33,690 $ 33,944 $ 15,786 $ (75,512) $ 37,903
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
flows from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization � � 12,942 7,203 � 20,145
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment � � 235 � � 235
Deferred income taxes (2,359) � � � � (2,359)
Distributions in excess of (less than) equity
earnings (32,164) (43,348) 181 294 75,512 475
Equity earnings of GrowHow UK Limited � � � 4,374 � 4,374
Non-cash loss on derivatives 621 � � � � 621
Share-based compensation 7,170 � � � � 7,170
Amortization of intangible and other assets � � 1,835 505 � 2,340
Change in operating assets and liabilities (32,637) 27,424 9,306 10,126 � 14,219

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (29,374) 17,766 58,443 38,288 � 85,123

Investing Activities
Capital expenditures and plant turnaround
expenditures � � (24,463) (4,169) � (28,632)
Distributions received from unconsolidated affiliate � � 120 4,353 � 4,473
Balancing consideration and other payments
received from GrowHow UK Limited � � � 5,230 � 5,230

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities � � (24,343) 5,414 � (18,929)

Financing Activities
Preferred share dividends paid (17) � � � � (17)
Common stock issuances and vestings (5,270) � � � � (5,270)
Change in investments and advances from (to)
affiliates 30,740 91,593 (47,060) (75,273) � �
Excess tax benefits from equity compensation plans 3,921 � � � � 3,921
Distributions to minority interests � (2,644) (11,061) � � (13,705)

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 29,374 88,949 (58,121) (75,273) � (15,071)

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash � � � 2,197 � 2,197

Increase (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents � 106,715 (24,021) (29,374) � 53,320
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of
Period � 331,714 284,658 350,328 � 966,700

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ � $ 438,429 $ 260,637 $ 320,954 $ � $ 1,020,020
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(unaudited)

17. Discontinued Operations

        On December 31, 2008, pursuant to a 2007 agreement, we sold our Beaumont, Texas assets, including the methanol and ammonia
production facilities, to Eastman Chemical Company (Eastman). Consideration received, including cash and a promissory note from Eastman of
$5.2 million plus interest, approximated this facility's carrying value. In connection with the sale of the Beaumont facility that was finalized in
2008, we received $5.4 million from Eastman and recognized $1.1 million, net of tax, of deferred revenue related to the sale during 2009.

        Pursuant to the requirements of the Codification 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment, we classified and accounted for the Beaumont assets
and liabilities as held for sale in the statements of financial position and the results of operations on a net of tax basis in the statement of
operations. This guidance requires that assets held for sale are valued on an asset-by-asset basis at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less
costs to sell. In applying those provisions, we considered cash flow analyses, and offers related to those assets. In accordance with the provisions
of this guidance, assets for sale are not depreciated. For the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, we did not include a table for the
summarized financial results of discontinued operations or a summarized balance sheet of discontinued operations because all balances were
zero.

18. Business Combination Activities and Subsequent Events

        During 2009, CF made a number of proposals to acquire Terra.

        On February 15, 2010, Terra and Yara International ASA (Yara) announced that, on February 12, 2010, they had entered into an agreement
and plan of merger (Yara/Terra merger agreement) pursuant to which Yara would acquire Terra. The Yara/Terra merger agreement allowed
Terra to terminate the agreement to accept a "superior proposal" (as defined in the Yara/Terra merger agreement) subject to certain conditions,
including the payment of a cash termination fee of $123.0 million to Yara.

        On March 2, 2010, CF announced a new offer to acquire Terra, and on March 5, 2010, CF commenced an exchange offer to acquire all of
Terra's outstanding common stock for consideration consisting of $37.15 in cash and 0.0953 of a share of CF common stock per share of Terra
common stock. On March 10, 2010, Terra announced that the Terra board of directors had determined that CF's offer constituted a "superior
proposal" under the terms of the Yara/Terra merger agreement, and on March 12, 2010, after complying with the procedures to terminate the
Yara/Terra merger agreement, Terra entered into a definitive merger agreement with CF, which provided for the acquisition of Terra by means
of an exchange offer followed by a second-step merger (the CF/Terra merger agreement). Under the terms of the CF/Terra merger agreement,
CF paid (on behalf of Terra) the $123.0 million termination fee due to Yara.

        On April 5, 2010, following the initial expiration of the exchange offer, CF acquired approximately 79% of Terra's outstanding common
stock and commenced a subsequent offering period to acquire the remaining shares of Terra common stock. The subsequent offering period
expired April 14, 2010, and on April 15, 2010, CF completed the second-step merger in which one of CF's subsidiaries merged with and into
Terra and Terra became an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of CF. In conjunction with the acquisition, Terra's Chief Executive Officer
(Michael L. Bennett) and Chief Financial Officer (Daniel D. Greenwell) resigned. Stephen R. Wilson, CF's Chief Executive Officer, and
Anthony J. Nocchiero,
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18. Business Combination Activities and Subsequent Events (Continued)

CF's Chief Financial Officer, assumed these responsibilities. In April 2010, we also incurred $77.1 million in additional investment banking fees
due to the successful exchange offer.

        As a result of the April 5, 2010 acquisition of a controlling interest in Terra, beginning with the second quarter of 2010, CF's consolidated
results will include Terra's results from and after April 5, 2010.

        Effective in April 2010, we will discontinue the use of hedge accounting for derivative instruments, including natural gas swaps. This
change will not affect the hedging strategy, economic decisions or cash flows. Once hedge accounting ceases, the entire unrealized gain or loss
on derivative instruments will be recorded directly in income for the period. These unrealized gains or losses on derivative instruments will be
communicated as part of reporting quarterly earnings of CF.

19. Guarantor Subsidiaries under CF Holdings New Structure

        Pursuant to the CF Merger Agreement, CF, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, acquired 100% of the equity interests of Terra
Industries Inc., and Terra Industries Inc. became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CF. The following condensed consolidating financial
information is presented in accordance with SEC Regulation S-X Rule 3-10, Financial Statements of Guarantors and Issuers of Guaranteed
Securities Registered or Being Registered, in connection with the filing of a shelf registration statement (the "Registration Statement") relating to
debt securities of CF subsidiary CF Industries, Inc. ("CFI") that may be offered from time to time and full and unconditional guarantees of such
debt securities (collectively, the "Guarantees") by CF and certain 100%-owned domestic subsidiaries of CF Holdings, Inc., including Terra
Industries Inc. and certain of Terra Industries Inc.'s 100%-owned domestic subsidiaries. The subsidiaries of Terra Industries Inc. that are
registering Guarantees on the Registration Statement are referred to below as "Guarantor Subsidiaries," and the other subsidiaries of Terra
Industries Inc. are referred to below as "Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries." The condensed consolidating financial information reflects the
assumption, and the expectation, that the Guarantees will be made joint and several.

        Presented below are condensed consolidating statements of operations and statements of cash flows for Terra Industries Inc., the Guarantor
Subsidiaries and the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries for periods ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and condensed consolidating balance
sheets for Terra Industries Inc., the Guarantor Subsidiaries and the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries as of March 31, 2010, December 31, 2009, and
March 31, 2009. The investments in subsidiaries in these consolidating financial statements are presented on the equity method. Under this
method, our investments are recorded at cost and adjusted for our ownership share of a subsidiary's cumulative results of operations,
distributions and other equity changes. The eliminating entries reflect primarily intercompany transactions such as sales, accounts receivable and
accounts payable and the elimination of equity investments and earnings of subsidiaries. The condensed financial information presented below is
not necessarily indicative of the financial position, results of operation or cash flow of Terra Industries Inc., the Guarantor Subsidiaries or the
Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries on a stand-alone basis.
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19. Guarantor Subsidiaries under CF Holdings New Structure (Continued)

        Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2010:

(in thousands)
Terra

Industries Inc.
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents $ � $ 137,160 $ 498,468 $ � $ 635,628
Accounts
receivable, net � 72,103 42,771 � 114,874
Inventories, net � 107,440 65,153 � 172,593
Other current
assets 34,627 13,399 20,026 � 68,052

Total current
assets 34,627 330,102 626,418 � 991,147

Property, plant and
equipment, net � 275,484 203,527 � 479,011
Equity method
investments � 9,185 195,787 � 204,972
Other current
assets � 32,441 20,087 � 52,528
Investments in and
advances to (from)
affiliates 692,976 3,676,619 606,718 (4,976,313) �

Total Assets $ 727,603 $ 4,323,831 $ 1,652,537 $ (4,976,313) $ 1,727,658

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 364 $ 56,009 $ 40,339 $ � $ 96,712
Customer
prepayments � 42,722 63,600 � 106,322
Derivative hedge
liabilities 5,670 72 4,212 � 9,954
Accrued and other
current liabilities 40,607 47,477 18,135 � 106,219

Total current
liabilities 46,641 146,280 126,286 � 319,207

Long-term debt � 602,605 � � 602,605
Deferred taxes 63,526 � 8,347 � 71,873
Pension and other
liabilities 112,725 9,669 5,756 � 128,150

Total liabilities 222,892 758,554 140,389 � 1,121,835
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Common
Stockholders'
Equity
Common stock 153,127 73 92,262 (92,335) 153,127
Paid-in capital 449,247 1,864,108 866,761 (2,730,869) 449,247
Accumulated other
comprehensive
loss (146,568) � (112,357) 112,357 (146,568)
Retained earnings 48,905 1,599,984 665,482 (2,265,466) 48,905

Total common
stockholders'
equity 504,711 3,464,165 1,512,148 (4,976,313) 504,711
Noncontrolling
interest � 101,112 � � 101,112

Total equity 504,711 3,565,277 1,512,148 (4,976,313) 605,823

Total liabilities
and equity $ 727,603 $ 4,323,831 $ 1,652,537 $ (4,976,313) $ 1,727,658
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19. Guarantor Subsidiaries under CF Holdings New Structure (Continued)

        Consolidating Statement of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2010:

(in thousands)
Terra

Industries Inc.
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues
Product revenues $ � $ 253,441 $ 154,353 $ � $ 407,794
Other income � 704 369 � 1,073

Total revenues � 254,145 154,722 � 408,867

Cost and Expense
Cost of sales � 196,482 107,623 � 304,105
Selling, general and administrative expenses 965 12,549 9,645 � 23,159
Other operating expenses 3,332 � � � 3,332
Equity earnings of North American affiliates � (1,097) (10,801) � (11,898)

Total cost and expenses 4,297 207,934 106,467 � 318,698

Income (loss) from operations (4,297) 46,211 48,255 � 90,169
Interest income � 40 94 � 134
Interest expense (465) (12,842) (82) � (13,389)

Income (loss) before income taxes, noncontrolling
interest and equity earnings (4,762) 33,409 48,267 � 76,914
Income tax benefit (provision) 1,522 (27,872) 1,199 � (25,151)
Equity earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 49,948 67,130 3,149 (117,078) 3,149

Net income 46,708 72,667 52,615 (117,078) 54,912
Less: Net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest � 8,204 � � 8,204

Net Income attributable to Terra Industries Inc. $ 46,708 $ 64,463 $ 52,615 $ (117,078) $ 46,708
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TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(unaudited)

19. Guarantor Subsidiaries under CF Holdings New Structure (Continued)

        Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2010:

(in thousands)
Terra

Industries Inc.
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Operating Activities
Net income $ 46,708 $ 72,667 $ 52,615 $ (117,078) $ 54,912
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows from
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization � 14,546 6,127 � 20,673
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment � 32 � � 32
Deferred income taxes (3,149) � � � (3,149)
Distributions in excess of (less than) equity earnings (49,948) (66,852) 2,084 117,078 2,362
Equity earnings of GrowHow UK Limited � � 15,763 � 15,763
Non-cash loss on derivatives 276 � � � 276
Share-based compensation 6,811 � � � 6,811
Amortization of intangible and other assets � 1,647 437 � 2,084
Change in operating assets and liabilities�continuing
operations 7,197 1,229 54,973 � 63,399

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 7,895 23,269 131,999 � 163,163

Investing Activities
Capital expenditures and plant turnaround expenditures � (12,776) (22,279) � (35,055)
Distributions received from North American affiliates � � 1,115 � 1,115
Balancing consideration and other payments received from
GrowHow UK Limited � � 13,911 � 13,911

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities � (12,776) (7,253) � (20,029)

Financing Activities
Preferred share dividends paid (5) � � � (5)
Common stock dividends paid (10,017) � � � (10,017)
Common stock issuances and vestings (888) � � � (888)
Change in investments and advances from (to) affiliates 825 47,604 (48,429) � �
Excess tax benefits from equity compensation plans 2,190 � � � 2,190

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities (7,895) 47,604 (48,429) � (8,720)

Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate on Cash � � (96) � (96)

Increase (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents � 58,097 76,221 � 134,318

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year � 79,063 422,247 � 501,310

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ � $ 137,160 $ 498,468 $ � $ 635,628
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TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(unaudited)

19. Guarantor Subsidiaries under CF Holdings New Structure (Continued)

        Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2009:

(in thousands)
Terra

Industries Inc.
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ � $ 79,063 $ 422,247 $ � $ 501,310
Accounts receivable, net � 59,130 41,086 � 100,216
Inventories, net � 86,291 50,782 � 137,073
Other current assets 52,850 15,288 19,565 � 87,703

Total current assets 52,850 239,772 533,680 � 826,302

Property, plant and equipment, net � 274,084 182,618 � 456,702
Equity method investments � 9,462 249,398 � 258,860
Other current assets � 37,023 20,856 � 57,879
Investments in and advances to
(from) affiliates 643,853 3,774,981 593,395 (5,012,229) �

Total Assets $ 696,703 $ 4,335,322 $ 1,579,947 $ (5,012,229) $ 1,599,743

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 277 $ 56,984 $ 30,637 $ � $ 87,898
Customer prepayments � 14,857 24,381 � 39,238
Derivative hedge liabilities 130 85 66 � 281
Accrued and other current liabilities 21,860 38,772 18,160 � 78,792

Total current liabilities 22,267 110,698 73,244 � 206,209

Long-term debt � 602,434 � � 602,434
Deferred taxes 70,564 � 6,255 � 76,819
Pension and other liabilities 112,652 10,187 5,808 � 128,647

Total liabilities 205,483 723,319 85,307 � 1,014,109

Preferred Shares 483 � � � 483
Common Stockholders' Equity
Common stock 152,802 73 92,262 (92,335) 152,802
Paid-in capital 446,078 1,864,108 878,074 (2,742,182) 446,078
Accumulated other comprehensive
loss (120,362) � (88,563) 88,563 (120,362)
Retained earnings 12,219 1,653,408 612,867 (2,266,275) 12,219

Total common stockholders' equity 490,737 3,517,589 1,494,640 (5,012,229) 490,737

Noncontrolling interest � 94,414 � � 94,414

Total equity 490,737 3,612,003 1,494,640 (5,012,229) 585,151
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TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(unaudited)

19. Guarantor Subsidiaries under CF Holdings New Structure (Continued)

        Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2009:

(in thousands)
Terra

Industries Inc.
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ � $ 476,040 $ 543,980 $ � $ 1,020,020
Accounts receivable, net � 67,612 51,668 � 119,280
Inventories � 93,160 67,179 � 160,339
Other current assets 22,821 9,690 6,739 � 39,250

Total current assets 22,821 646,502 669,566 � 1,338,889

Property, plant and equipment, net � 279,387 127,457 � 406,844
Equity method investments � 9,816 243,808 � 253,624
Intangible assets, other assets and deferred
plant turnaround costs 2,220 36,469 12,962 � 51,651
Investments in and advances to (from) affiliates 1,250,867 3,078,883 620,760 (4,950,510) �

Total assets $ 1,275,908 $ 4,051,057 $ 1,674,553 $ (4,950,510) $ 2,051,008

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 60 $ 55,697 $ 42,799 $ � $ 98,556
Customer prepayments � 83,005 93,539 � 176,544
Derivative hedge liabilities 14,998 767 11,509 � 27,274
Accrued and other current liabilities 29,344 33,484 2,412 � 65,240

Total current liabilities 44,402 172,953 150,259 � 367,614

Long-term debt � 330,000 � � 330,000
Deferred taxes 66,794 � 7,824 � 74,618
Pension and other liabilities 75,160 10,511 2,103 � 87,774

Total liabilities 186,356 513,464 160,186 � 860,006

Preferred Shares�liquidation value of $1,600 1,544 � � � 1,544
Common Stockholders' Equity
Common stock 152,481 73 92,262 (92,335) 152,481
Paid-in capital 580,035 2,033,193 1,083,982 (3,117,175) 580,035
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (172,065) � (145,155) 145,155 (172,065)
Retained earnings 527,557 1,402,877 483,278 (1,886,155) 527,557

Total stockholders' equity 1,088,008 3,436,143 1,514,367 (4,950,510) 1,088,008
Noncontrolling interest � 101,450 � � 101,450

Total equity 1,088,088 3,537,593 1,514,367 (4,950,510) 1,189,458

Total liabilities and equity $ 1,275,908 $ 4,051,057 $ 1,674,553 $ (4,950,510) $ 2,051,008
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TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(unaudited)

19. Guarantor Subsidiaries under CF Holdings New Structure (Continued)

        Consolidating Statement of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2009:

(in thousands)
Terra

Industries Inc.
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues
Product revenues $ � $ 209,867 $ 208,495 $ � $ 418,362
Other income � 1,103 288 � 1,391

Total revenues � 210,970 208,783 � 419,753

Cost and Expenses
Cost of sales � 182,228 160,729 � 342,957
Selling, general and administrative expenses 539 9,007 9,022 � 18,568
Other operating expenses 1,700 � � � 1,700
Equity earnings of North American affiliates � (699) (2,553) � (3,252)

Total cost and expenses 2,239 190,536 167,198 � 359,973

Income (loss) from operations (2,239) 20,434 41,585 � 59,780
Interest income � 830 980 � 1,810
Interest expense (465) (6,182) (81) � (6,728)

Income (loss) before income taxes, noncontrolling
interest and equity earnings (2,704) 15,082 42,484 � 54,862
Income tax benefit (provision) 535 (14,730) 1,610 � (12,585)
Equity earnings (loss) of unconsolidated affiliates 32,164 43,348 (4,374) (75,512) (4,374)

Net income 29,995 43,700 39,720 (75,512) 37,903
Less: Net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest � (7,908) � � (7,908)

Net income attributable to Terra Industries Inc. $ 29,995 $ 35,792 $ 39,720 $ (75,512) $ 29,995
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TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(unaudited)

19. Guarantor Subsidiaries under CF Holdings New Structure (Continued)

        Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2009:

(in thousands)
Terra

Industries Inc.
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

Operating Activities
Net income $ 29,995 $ 43,700 $ 39,720 $ (75,512) $ 37,903
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows from
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization � 12,942 7,203 � 20,145
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment � 235 � � 235
Deferred income taxes (2,359) � � � (2,359)
Distributions in excess of (less than) equity earnings (32,164) (43,167) 294 75,512 475
Equity loss of GrowHow UK Limited � � 4,374 � 4,374
Non-cash loss on derivatives 621 � � � 621
Share-based compensation 7,170 � � � 7,170
Amortization of intangible and other assets � 1,835 505 � 2,340
Change in operating assets and liabilities (32,637) 32,358 14,498 � 14,219

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (29,374) 47,903 66,594 � 85,123

Investing Activities
Capital expenditures and plant turnaround expenditures � (17,758) (10,874) � (28,632)
Distributions received from unconsolidated affiliate � 120 4,353 � 4,473
Balancing consideration and other payments received from
GrowHow UK Limited � � 5,230 � 5,230

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities � (17,638) (1,291) � (18,929)

Financing Activities
Preferred share dividends paid (17) � � � (17)
Common stock issuances and vestings (5,270) � � � (5,270)
Change in investments and advances from (to) affiliates 30,740 77,497 (108,237) � �
Excess tax benefits from equity compensation plans 3,921 � � � 3,921
Distributions to minority interests � (13,705) � � (13,705)

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 29,374 63,792 (108,237) � (15,071)

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash � � 2,197 � 2,197

Increase (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents � 94,057 (40,737) � 53,320
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period � 381,983 584,717 � 966,700

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ � $ 476,040 $ 543,980 $ � $ 1,020,020
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 ITEM 2.    MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

        You should read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction with our Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
Notes thereto contained in Part I, Item 1, of this report. The information contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q is not a complete
description of our business or the risks associated with an investment in our common shares. We urge you to review and consider carefully the
various disclosures made by us in this report and in our other reports filed with the SEC, including our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2009 and subsequent reports on Form 8-K, which discusses our business in greater detail.

        The section entitled "Risk Factors" contained in our 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K and similar discussions in our other SEC filings,
describe some of the important risk factors that may affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and/or liquidity. You should
carefully consider those risks, in addition to the other information in this report and in our other filings with the SEC.

INTRODUCTORY NOTE

        On April 15, 2010, Terra became a wholly-owned subsidiary of CF Industries Holdings, Inc. (CF) pursuant to an agreement and plan of
merger between CF and Terra, dated as of March 12, 2010. The merger agreement provided for the acquisition of Terra by means of an
exchange offer followed by a second-step merger. On April 5, 2010, following the initial expiration of the exchange offer, CF acquired
approximately 79% of Terra's outstanding common stock and commenced a subsequent offering period to acquire the remaining shares of
Terra's common stock. The subsequent offering period expired April 14, 2010, and on April 15, 2010, CF completed the second-step merger in
which one of CF's subsidiaries merged with and into Terra (see Note 18).

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated Results

        We reported for the first three months of 2010 net income of $46.7 million on revenues of $408.9 million compared with 2009 first three
month net income of $30.0 million on revenues of $419.8 million. The increase in net income is primarily due to lower natural gas cost in 2010
and an increase in equity earnings from North American and the U.K. joint ventures. The decrease in revenues is due to the first quarter of 2009
sales benefitting from higher priced orders taken during 2008. Diluted income per share for the three months ended March 31, 2010 was $0.47
compared with $0.30 for the three months ended March 31, 2009.
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        The following table shows the results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 (certain percentages that are not
considered to be meaningful are represented by NM):

Three Months Ended
March 31,

(in millions except per share data and shares outstanding) 2010 2009 Change Percent
Net sales $ 408.9 $ 419.8 $ (10.9) (3)%
Cost of goods sold 304.1 343.0 (38.9) (11)%

Gross margin 104.8 76.8 28.0 36%
Gross margin percentage 25.6% 18.3% 7.3% 40%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 23.2 18.6 4.6 25%
Other operating expenses 3.3 1.7 1.6 94%
Equity in earnings of North American affiliates (11.9) (3.3) (8.6) 261%

Income from operations 90.2 59.8 30.4 51%
Interest income (expense), net (13.3) (4.9) (8.4) 171%

Income before income taxes, noncontrolling interest and equity earnings (loss) of
GrowHow UK Limited 76.9 54.9 22.0 40%
Income tax provision (25.1) (12.6) (12.5) 99%
Equity earnings (loss) of GrowHow UK Limited 3.1 (4.4) 7.5 NM

Net income 54.9 37.9 17.0 45%
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 8.2 7.9 0.3 4%

Net income attributable to Terra Industries Inc. $ 46.7 $ 30.0 $ 16.7 56%

Diluted earnings per share $ 0.47 $ 0.30 0.17 57%
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding (in thousands) 100,249 99,760 489.0 0.5%
        The following table shows sales volumes and prices and natural gas cost for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009:

2010 2009

(quantities in thousands of tons)
Sales

Volumes
Average

Unit Price(1)
Sales

Volumes
Average

Unit Price(1)
Ammonia 374 314 381 $ 336
UAN�32% basis 837 184 625 $ 282
Urea(2) 82 325 77 $ 322
Ammonium nitrate(3) 296 193 168 $ 267
Natural gas cost(4) � $ 5.39 � $ 7.37

(1)
After deducting $42.0 million and $34.7 million outbound freight costs for 2010 and 2009, respectively.

(2)
Urea sales volumes and prices include granular urea and urea solutions data.

(3)
Ammonium nitrate sales volumes and prices include agricultural grade AN, industrial grade AN and ammonium nitrate solution
(ANS).

(4)
Per MMBtu. Includes all transportation and other logistical costs and any gains or losses on financial derivatives related to North
American natural gas purchases. Net benefit of derivatives for the first quarter of 2010 was $2.8 million and the net cost of derivatives
for the first quarter of 2009 was $72.9 million. Excluding the impact of 2010 hedge costs, natural gas cost was $5.48 per MMBtu for
the 2010 first quarter.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS�QUARTER ENDED MARCH 31, 2010 COMPARED WITH QUARTER ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

        Our net sales for the first quarter of 2010 were $408.9 million, a decline of $10.9 million or 3 percent from the first quarter of 2009 net
sales of $419.8 million. UAN and AN fertilizer volumes saw a significant improvement over the first quarter of 2009 as historical restocking
patterns returned and grower demand drove buying in anticipation of a strong 2010 spring season. AN demand benefited from improved
fertilizer applications on pasture and limited imports during the period, coupled with a strong recovery in industrial AN requirements. First
quarter 2010 prices trailed the prior year as the early 2009 prices continued to benefit from the strong order book and firm prices captured in the
second half of 2008. The ammonia and urea sales volumes in the first quarter of 2010 reflect the improving economic environment. The slight
reduction in ammonia volumes in the first quarter of 2010 as compared to the first quarter of 2009 was reflective of a delayed direct application
season due to wet soil conditions.

        Our gross margin was $104.8 million in the first quarter of 2010 compared to $76.8 million in the first quarter of 2009. Gross margin
increased as a percentage of sales to 25.6 percent from 18.3 percent. The gross margin percentage includes a 26.9 percent decrease in natural gas
costs for the first quarter of 2010. The first quarter natural gas unit costs, net of forward pricing gains and losses, declined from $7.37 per
MMBtu in 2009 to $5.39 per MMBtu in 2010.

        We enter into forward sales commitments by utilizing forward pricing and prepayment programs with customers. We use derivative
instruments to hedge a portion of our natural gas requirements. The use of these derivative instruments is designed to hedge exposure to natural
gas price fluctuations for production required for forward sales estimates. The net benefit of derivatives for the first quarter of 2010 was
$2.8 million compared to the net cost of derivatives for the first quarter of 2009 of $72.9 million. Excluding the impact of the hedge cost, natural
gas cost was $5.48 per MMBtu in the first quarter of 2010.

        Effective in April 2010, we will discontinue the use of hedge accounting for derivative instruments, including natural gas swaps. This
change will not affect the hedging strategy, economic decisions or cash flows. Once hedge accounting ceases, the entire unrealized gain or loss
on derivative instruments will be recorded directly in income for the period. These unrealized gains or losses on derivative instruments will be
communicated as part of reporting quarterly earnings of CF.

Selling, General and Administrative Costs and Other Operating Expenses

        Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) costs increased $4.6 million in the first quarter of 2010 compared to the first quarter of 2009
primarily due to an increase in bonus and restricted stock compensation expense offset by a reduction in performance phantom stock due to the
majority of the awards in 2010 being accrued at 100 percent rather than the 200 percent in 2009.

        Other operating expense of $3.3 million represents professional service fees related to the unsuccessful merger agreement with Yara. The
$1.7 million of other operating expenses for the first quarter of 2009 related to fees for professional services associated with the exchange offer
from CF during 2009.

Equity Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates�North America

        We recorded income of $11.9 million from our North American equity investments in the first quarter of 2010 as compared to $3.3 million
in the first quarter of 2009. In addition, we also received cash distributions of $15.4 million from our North American equity investments in
2010 as compared to $8.2 million in 2009. The increase in the first quarter results is primarily due to the increase in Gulf
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ammonia pricing which affects the results of our Point Lisas facility, as compared to the first quarter of 2009.

Equity Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates�GrowHow

        We recorded income of $3.1 million from GrowHow for the first quarter ended March 31, 2010 as compared to loss of $4.4 million for the
quarter ended March 31, 2009. The increase was attributed to a 59 percent increase in sales volumes and a 5 percent decrease in natural gas cost,
offset by a decline in sales prices of 29 percent. During the first quarter of 2010, we received the remaining balancing consideration of
$13.9 million and $18.9 million in cash distributions.

Noncontrolling Interests

        Noncontrolling interests represent third-party interests in the earnings of the publicly held common units of Terra Nitrogen Company, L.P.
(TNCLP). We own an aggregate of 75.3 percent of TNCLP through general and limited partnership interests. TNCLP has its manufacturing
facility in Verdigris, Oklahoma and is a major producer of nitrogen fertilizer products.

        The noncontrolling interests reported in the first quarter of 2010 and 2009 are directly related to TNCLP earnings and losses. The TNCLP
Agreement of Limited Partnership allows for the General Partner to receive Incentive Distribution Rights (IDR's) once a minimum threshold has
been met. TNCLP did not declare a distribution for the fourth quarter of 2009, therefore a deficit for the Minimum Quarterly Distribution
(MQD) was created and was required to be made whole during the first quarter of 2010. During the first quarter of 2010 the MQD related to the
fourth quarter of 2009 was fulfilled in addition to the MQD for the first quarter of 2010. The current noncontrolling interest reflects the impact
of the distribution in the adjusted income allocation. The General Partner interest received an increased income allocation of $0.1 million for the
quarter ended March 31, 2010, as compared to $3.8 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2009.

Income Taxes

        Our income tax expense for the first quarter of 2010 and 2009 was $25.2 million and $12.6 million, respectively, and was based on the
estimated effective tax rate for the individual jurisdictions in which we operate. The estimated annual effective tax rates were 35.0 percent and
29.6 percent in the quarters ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Our effective tax rate reflects tax benefits derived from operations
outside the U.S. which are generally taxed at rates lower than the U.S. federal statutory rate of 35 percent.

        During the first quarter of 2010, the Company recognized U.S. tax expense associated with repatriation of funds to the U.S. The amount of
additional tax expense associated with the repatriation of funds was approximately $7.0 million. In addition, the first quarter effective tax rate
reflects the loss of the domestic manufacturer's deduction as a result of the CF merger. The lost benefit that was not recorded as a result of the
domestic manufacturer's deduction was approximately $2.1 million. Excluding the effects of these adjustments, our first quarter 2010 effective
tax rate was 22.4 percent.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

        Our primary uses of cash and cash equivalents were to fund our working capital requirements, make payments for plant turnarounds and
capital expenditures, and common stock dividends. The principal sources of funds were cash flows from operations and funds received from
GrowHow, our 50 percent owned joint venture, and distributions received from our North American equity investments. Cash and cash
equivalents were $635.6 million at March 31, 2010.
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Cash Flows

        The following table summarized our cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities for the three month period ended
March 31, 2010 and 2009:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

($ in millions) 2010 2009
Operating activities $ 163.1 $ 85.1
Investing activities (20.0) (18.9)
Financing activities (8.7) (15.1)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (0.1) 2.2

Increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 134.3 $ 53.3

Operating Activities

        Our cash flows from operating activities were $163.1 million during the first three months of 2010. The $163.1 million is comprised of
$99.8 million from operations and $63.3 million from changes in our working capital accounts. The $99.8 million includes $54.9 million of net
income attributable to Terra, adjusted for non-cash expenses. The significant non-cash expenses incurred include $20.7 million of depreciation
of property, plant and equipment and amortization of deferred plant turnaround costs, $18.1 million in distributions in excess of equity earnings
from the North American and U.K. equity investments and $6.8 million of share-based compensation, offset by $3.1 million of deferred income
taxes.

        Included in the March 31, 2010 cash and cash equivalents balance of $635.6 is $106.3 million of customer prepayments for the selling price
and delivery costs of products that we expect to ship during the next three months, as compared to the March 31, 2009 cash and cash equivalents
balance of $1,020.0 million which included $176.5 million of customer prepayments.

Investing Activities

        Our investing activities used cash of $20.0 million during the first three months of 2010. The primary use of cash was related to
$34.8 million of property, plant and equipment purchases for our operations and $0.3 million for turnaround activities. The primary sources of
cash were related to the $13.9 million balancing consideration and other payments received from GrowHow. We also received $1.1 million in
distributions from our North American equity investments above the equity earnings.

Financing Activities

        Our financing activities used cash of $8.7 million during the first three months of 2010. The primary use of cash related to $10.0 million of
common stock dividends, offset by $2.2 million related to the excess tax benefit from equity compensation vesting.

Long-term Debt and Revolving Credit Facilities

        In October 2009, we issued $600 million of 7.75 percent Unsecured Senior Notes due in 2019 (2019 Notes) in order to fund the special cash
dividend and refinance our Senior Unsecured Notes due in 2017 (2017 Notes). The notes are unconditionally guaranteed by Terra and certain of
its U.S. subsidiaries, see Note 16, Guarantor Subsidiaries,  of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. These notes and guarantees
are unsecured and will rank equal in right of payment with any existing and future senior obligations of such guarantors.
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        On April 5, 2010, the 2019 Notes were called for redemption in accordance with their terms, and the indenture governing the notes was
satisfied and discharged.

        On September 24, 2009, we commenced a cash tender offer and consent solicitation for any and all of the 2017 Notes. On October 27,
2009, we announced completion of the tender offer and received tenders from holders of approximately $317.5 aggregate principal amount of
the 2017 Notes, representing approximately 96.2 percent of the outstanding notes. As of March 31, 2010, the outstanding debt balance related to
the 2017 Notes is $12.5 million. We recorded a $53.5 million pre-tax loss ($32.4 million, net of tax) on the early retirement of debt which
consisted of $48.8 million for the early call premium, $4.5 million of unamortized issuance costs, and $0.2 million in related expenses for the
tender of the 2017 Notes. Following the tender and consent solicitation, substantially all of the restrictive covenants in the indenture governing
the 2017 Notes were eliminated.

        We have revolving credit facilities totaling $200 million that expire January 31, 2012. The revolving facilities are secured by substantially
all of our working capital. Borrowing availability is generally based on 100 percent of eligible cash balances, 85 percent of eligible accounts
receivable, approximately 60 percent of eligible finished goods inventory and is reduced by outstanding letters of credit. These facilities include
$50 million only available for the use of Terra Nitrogen Company, L.P. (TNCLP), one of our consolidated subsidiaries. Borrowings under the
revolving facilities will bear interest at a floating rate plus an applicable margin, which can be either a base rate, or, at our option, a London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). At March 31, 2010, the LIBOR rate was 0.23 percent. The base rate is the highest of (1) Citibank, N.A.'s base
rate (2) the federal funds effective rate, plus one-half percent (0.50 percent) per annum and (3) the base three month certificate of deposit rate,
plus one-half percent (0.50 percent) per annum, plus an applicable margin in each case. LIBOR loans will bear interest at LIBOR plus an
applicable margin. The applicable margins for base rate loans and LIBOR loans are 2.00 percent and 3.00 percent, respectively, at March 31,
2010. The facilities require an initial three-quarter percent (0.75 percent) commitment fee on the difference between committed amounts and
amounts actually borrowed.

        At March 31, 2010, we had no outstanding revolving credit borrowings and $8.2 million in outstanding letters of credit. The $8.2 million in
outstanding letters of credit reduced our borrowing availability to $191.8 million at March 31, 2010.

        In conjunction with the merger transaction with CF (see Note 18), our $150 million facility at Terra Capital, Inc. was terminated effective
April 5, 2010.

        On April 2, 2010, TNCLP entered into a waiver relating to the $50 million facility at TNCLP. The waiver provides for the waiver of the
"change of control" event of default that would have resulted from CF's acquisition of more than 35% of Terra Industries Inc.'s outstanding
common stock. The waiver is effective through July 1, 2010. We are currently considering options to replace this facility. There can be no
assurance, however, that this facility can be replaced on terms acceptable to us or at all.

        In addition, our ability to manage our exposure to commodity price risk in the purchase of natural gas through the use of financial
derivatives may be affected by our ability to obtain sufficient credit terms. For additional information regarding commodity price risk, see
Item 3, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

        Terra Industries Inc. is now a wholly-owned subsidiary of CF. Please see CF's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC for a
discussion of CF's liquidity and capital resources.

 ITEM 3.    QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

        Market risks relating to our operations result primarily from interest rates, foreign exchange rates, natural gas prices and nitrogen prices.
We manage our exposure to these and other market risks
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through regular operating and financing activities and through the use of derivative financial instruments. Item 7A, Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk, of Terra's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 provides more information as to
the types of practices and instruments used to manage risk. There were no material changes in our use of financial instruments during the quarter
ended March 31, 2010.

        Natural gas is the principal raw material used to manufacture nitrogen and methanol. Natural gas prices are volatile and we mitigate some
of this volatility through the use of derivative commodity instruments. Estimated North American natural gas requirements for 2010 are
approximately 113 billion cubic feet (BCF). We have hedged 11% of our expected North American requirements for the next twelve months.
The fair value of these instruments is estimated based, in part, on quoted market prices from brokers, realized gains or losses and our
computations. These instruments and other natural gas positions fixed natural gas prices at $10.0 million (including $9.7 million included in
accumulated other comprehensive loss) more than published prices for March 31, 2010 forward markets.

        As of March 31, 2010, there were no material changes outside the ordinary course of business to Terra's contractual obligations, critical
accounting policies or off-balance sheet arrangements presented in Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations" of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2009.

 ITEM 4.    CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

        Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded, based on their evaluation as of the end of the period covered by
this report, that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file
or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods
specified in the SEC's rules and forms.

        There were no significant changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the most recent fiscal quarter that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION IS SUBJECT TO RISK AND UNCERTAINTY

        Certain statements in this report may constitute "forward-looking" statements within the meaning of the Private Litigation Reform Act of
1995. Forward-looking statements are based upon assumptions as to future events that may not prove to be accurate. Actual outcomes and
results may differ materially from what is expressed or forecasted in these forward-looking statements. As a result, these statements speak only
as of the date they were made and we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise, except as otherwise required by law.

        Words such as "expects," "intends," "plans," "projects," "believes," "estimates," and similar expressions are used to identify these
forward-looking statements. Forward looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks, uncertainties and
assumptions that are difficult to predict. These risks, uncertainties and assumptions include, among others, statements relating to:

�
changes in product mix;

�
changes in the seasonality of demand patterns;

�
changes in weather conditions;

�
changes in environmental and other government regulations;
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�
changes in agricultural regulations;

�
changes in the securities trading markets;

�
the potential for disruption from the CF/Terra acquisition to make it more difficult for us to maintain relationships with
customers, employees or suppliers;

�
the volatile cost of natural gas in the areas where our production facilities are principally located;

�
the global commodity nature of our fertilizer products, the impact of global supply and demand on our selling prices, and the
intense global competition in the consolidating markets in which we operate;

�
conditions in the U.S. agricultural industry;

�
risks involving derivatives and the effectiveness of our risk measurement and hedging activities;

�
the reliance of our operations on a limited number of key facilities and the significant risks and hazards against which we
may not be fully insured;

�
reliance on third party transportation providers;

�
risks associated with joint ventures;

�
risks associated with expansion of our business, including unanticipated adverse consequences and the significant resources
that could be required;

�
potential liabilities and expenditures related to environmental and health and safety laws and regulations;

�
acts of terrorism and regulations to combat terrorism;

�
difficulties in securing the supply and delivery of raw materials we use and increases in their costs;

�
risks associated with international operations;

�
deterioration of global market and economic conditions;

�
our ability to comply with the covenants under our indebtedness and to make payments under such indebtedness when due;

�
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�
loss of key members of management and professional staff;

�
changes in financial and capital markets;

�
general economic conditions within the agricultural industry;

�
competitive factors and price changes (principally, sales prices of nitrogen products and natural gas costs);

�
other risks detailed in the section entitled "Risk Factors" in our 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K and subsequent Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q.

        Additional information as to these factors can be found in our 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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 PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

 ITEM 1.    LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

        Purported shareholders of Terra commenced putative class actions against Terra and its directors in the Circuit Court for Baltimore City,
Maryland. The Maryland court consolidated these into a single action, In re Terra Industries Inc. Shareholder Litigation. On March 30, 2010,
the plaintiffs filed a consolidated putative class action complaint, as well as a motion for partial summary judgment as to liability. The
consolidated complaint generally alleges that the director defendants breached their fiduciary duties by, among other things, approving the
merger agreement with Yara International ASA (Yara) without engaging in adequate process to determine that such agreement was the best
available transaction. The complaint seeks monetary damages based on the $123 million termination fee that CF Industries paid to Yara, on
Terra's behalf in conjunction with the termination by Terra of the Yara merger agreement. The defendants filed a motion to dismiss or, in the
alternative, for summary judgment, as well as an opposition to the plaintiff's motion for partial summary judgment. The defendents believe the
lawsuit is without merit and intend to defend against it vigorously.

        Purported Terra shareholders filed a second putative shareholder class action, also captioned In re Terra Industries Inc. Shareholder
Litigation, in the Iowa District Court for Woodbury County. The plaintiff's filed a consolidated putative class action complaint against Terra and
its directors on April 14, 2010. Like the putative action in Maryland, the consolidated complaint in Iowa generally alleges that the director
defendants breached their fiduciary duties by, among other things, approving the Yara merger agreement without engaging in an adequate
process to determine that such agreement was the best available transaction. The complaint seeks monetary damages based on the $123 million
termination fee that CF Industries paid to Yara, on Terra's behalf, in connection with the termination by Terra of the Yara merger agreement.
The defendants believe the lawsuit is without merit and intend to defend against it vigorously.

 ITEM 1A.    RISK FACTORS

        On April 15, 2010, we became a wholly-owned subsidiary of CF Industries Holdings, Inc. (CF) (see Note 18). Please see CF's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on May 7, 2010 for CF's risk factors.

 ITEM 2.    UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

        None

 ITEM 3.    DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

        None

 ITEM 4.    REMOVED AND RESERVED

        None

 ITEM 5.    OTHER INFORMATION

        None
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 ITEM 6.    EXHIBITS

(a)
Exhibits

Exhibit 2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated March 12, 2010, among CF Industries Holdings, Inc., Composite Merger Corporation
and Terra Industries Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Terra Industries Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on March 12, 2010, File No. 001-08520)

Exhibit 2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated February 12, 2010, among Yara International ASA, Yukon Merger Sub, Inc. and
Terra Industries Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Terra Industries Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on February 16, 2010, File No. 001-08520)

Exhibit 31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 31.2* Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 32.1* Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 32.2* Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

*
Filed herewith
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SIGNATURE

        Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

TERRA INDUSTRIES INC.

Date: May 7, 2010 /s/ ANTHONY J. NOCCHIERO

Anthony J. Nocchiero
Vice President and a duly
authorized signatory
(Principal Financial Officer)
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